
 

 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and 
 

Commissioning 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 
The Democracy Service 
 

Civic Centre 3 
 

High Street 
 

Huddersfield 
 

HD1 2TG 
 

Tel: 01484 221000  
 

Please ask for: Leigh Webb 
 

Email: leigh.webb@kirklees.gov.uk 
 

Monday 30 November 2020 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
Dear Member 
 

Economy and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 
 

The Economy and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel will meet in the Virtual 
Meeting - online at 12.00 pm on Tuesday 8 December 2020. 
 
This meeting will be webcast live and will be available to view via the Council’s website. 
 
The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports 
attached which give more details. 
 
 

 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and Commissioning 
 
 
Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should 
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

The Economy and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel members are:- 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Member 
Councillor Harpreet Uppal (Chair) 
Councillor Martyn Bolt 
Councillor Richard Murgatroyd 
Councillor John Taylor 
Councillor Richard Eastwood 
Councillor Yusra Hussain 
Chris Friend (Co-Optee) 
Eilidh Ogden (Co-Optee) 
Andrew Bird (Co-Optee) 
 



 

 

 

Agenda 
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached 

 

 
  Pages 

 

1:   Membership of the Committee 
 
This is where Councillors who are attending as substitutes will say 
for whom they are attending. 
 

 
 

 

2:   Interests 
 
The Councillors will be asked to say if there are any items on the 
Agenda in which they have disclosable pecuniary interests, which 
would prevent them from participating in any discussion of the items 
or participating in any vote upon the items, or any other interests. 
 

 
 

1 - 2 

3:   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
To approve the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 6 
October 2020. 
 

 
 

3 - 8 

4:   Admission of the Public 
 
Most debates take place in public. This only changes when there is a 
need to consider certain issues, for instance, commercially sensitive 
information or details concerning an individual. You will be told at 
this point whether there are any items on the Agenda which are to 
be discussed in private. 
 

 
 

 

5:   Public Question Time 
 
The Panel will hear any questions from the general public. Due to 
Covid 19 restrictions, questions must be submitted to 
executive.governance@kirklees.go.uk no later than 12 noon on 7 
December. 
 

 
 

 

6:   Deputations/Petitions  

mailto:executive.governance@kirklees.go.uk


 

 

 
The Panel will receive any petitions and hear any deputations from 
members of the public. A deputation is where up to five people can 
attend the meeting and make a presentation on some particular 
issue of concern. A member of the public can also hand in a petition 
at the meeting but that petition should relate to something on which 
the body has powers and responsibilities. 
 
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 (2), Members of the 
Public should provide at least 24 hours’ notice of presenting a 
deputation. 
 

 
 

7:   Active Travel 
 

To present the current influences on Kirklees Council’s vision 
for an Active Travel Strategy and the next steps to developing 
an Active Travel Strategy. 
 

Contact - Tim Lawrence, Transport Strategy and Policy Manager  

 
 

 
 

9 - 24 

8:   Air Quality - Update 
 
To receive a presentation on the progress against the Air Quality 
Action Plan. 
 
Contact – Shaun Berry, Operational Manager- Environmental Health, 
Environment Services - Public Protection 
 

 
 

 

9:   Waste Service - Update 
 
To receive a presentation on the Waste Service. 
 
Contact: Will Acornley, Head of Operational Services. 
 

 
 

 

10:   Work Programme 
 
To consider the Panel’s Work Programme 2020/21 
 
Contact: Leigh Webb, Principal Democratic and Engagement Officer  
 

 
 

25 - 28 



 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



K
IR

K
LE

ES
 C

O
U

N
C

IL

C
O

U
N

C
IL

/C
A

B
IN

ET
/C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

ET
C

 
D

EC
LA

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

ES
TS

 
Ec

on
om

y 
& 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

N
am

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
 

Ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
an

 
in

te
re

st
 

Ty
pe

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t (

eg
 a

 
di

sc
lo

sa
bl

e 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

 o
r a

n 
“O

th
er

 
In

te
re

st
”)

 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 

in
te

re
st

 re
qu

ire
 y

ou
 to

 
w

ith
dr

aw
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 
ha

ve
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 is

 u
nd

er
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n?
  [

Y/
N

] 

B
rie

f d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
r 

in
te

re
st

 

Si
gn

ed
:  

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

   
   

   
D

at
ed

:  
  …

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
.. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



N
O

TE
S 

D
is

cl
os

ab
le

 P
ec

un
ia

ry
 In

te
re

st
s 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

s,
 th

ey
 a

re
 y

ou
r d

is
cl

os
ab

le
 p

ec
un

ia
ry

 in
te

re
st

s 
un

de
r t

he
 n

ew
 n

at
io

na
l r

ul
es

. A
ny

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
sp

ou
se

 o
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

ny
 p

er
so

n 
w

ith
 w

ho
m

 y
ou

 a
re

 li
vi

ng
 a

s 
hu

sb
an

d 
or

 w
ife

, o
r a

s 
if 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
yo

ur
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
.  

 A
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
of

fic
e,

 tr
ad

e,
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n 
or

 v
oc

at
io

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
on

 fo
r p

ro
fit

 o
r g

ai
n,

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, u

nd
er

ta
ke

s.
  

A
ny

 p
ay

m
en

t o
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

ny
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l b
en

ef
it 

(o
th

er
 th

an
 fr

om
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y)
 m

ad
e 

or
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 p

er
io

d 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t o
f a

ny
 e

xp
en

se
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

yo
u 

in
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t d

ut
ie

s 
as

 a
 m

em
be

r, 
or

 to
w

ar
ds

 y
ou

r e
le

ct
io

n 
ex

pe
ns

es
.  

 A
ny

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
hi

ch
 is

 m
ad

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
yo

u,
 o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 (o

r a
 b

od
y 

in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
as

 
a 

be
ne

fic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t) 
an

d 
yo

ur
 c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
-  

• 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 g
oo

ds
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
r w

or
ks

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
ex

ec
ut

ed
; a

nd
  

• 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
fu

lly
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

d.
  

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t i

n 
la

nd
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
av

e 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y.
  

 A
ny

 li
ce

nc
e 

(a
lo

ne
 o

r j
oi

nt
ly

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s)

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

ol
ds

 to
 o

cc
up

y 
la

nd
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r a
 m

on
th

 o
r l

on
ge

r. 
 

 A
ny

 te
na

nc
y 

w
he

re
 (t

o 
yo

ur
 k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 - 

th
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

 is
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y;
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

na
nt

 is
 a

 b
od

y 
in

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r 

ci
vi

l p
ar

tn
er

, h
as

 a
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t. 
 

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

 h
as

 in
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 o
f a

 b
od

y 
w

he
re

 - 
 

(a
) t

ha
t b

od
y 

(to
 y

ou
r k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 h

as
 a

 p
la

ce
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
or

 la
nd

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f y
ou

r c
ou

nc
il 

or
 a

ut
ho

rit
y;

 a
nd

  
(b

) e
ith

er
 - 

 
 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 e

xc
ee

ds
 £

25
,0

00
 o

r o
ne

 h
un

dr
ed

th
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l i
ss

ue
d 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t 

bo
dy

; o
r  

 
if 

th
e 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t b

od
y 

is
 o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

, t
he

 to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ha

re
s 

of
 a

ny
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

 in
 

w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

as
 a

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t e

xc
ee

ds
 o

ne
 h

un
dr

ed
th

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l i

ss
ue

d 
sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l o

f t
ha

t c
la

ss
.  

 

Page 2



 

1 
 

Contact Officer: Leigh Webb   
 

 
KIRKLEES COUNCIL 

 
ECONOMY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL 

 
Tuesday 6 October 2020 
 
Present: Councillor Harpreet Uppal (Chair) 
 Councillor Richard Eastwood 

Councillor Richard Murgatroyd 
Councillor John Taylor 
 

  
Co-optees:  
  
In attendance: Councillor Peter McBride –  Deputy Leader and 

Cabinet Member for Regeneration 
Councillor Rob Walker – Cabinet Member Culture and 
Environment  
Councillor Naheed Mather – Cabinet Member 
Greener Kirklees 

  
  
Apologies: Councillor Martyn Bolt 

Councillor Yusra Hussain 
Andrew Bird (Co-optee) 
Chris Friend (Co-optee) 
Eilidh Ogden (Co-optee) 
 

  
 

 
1 Membership of the Committee 

Apologies were received from Councillor Martyn Bolt, Councillor Yusra Hussain, 
Chris Friend (Co-optee), Eilidh Ogden (Co-optee) and Andrew Bird (Co-optee).  
 

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 August 2020 be agreed as a correct 
record. 
 

3 Interests 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

4 Admission of the Public 
All items were considered in public session. 
 

5 Deputations/Petitions 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

2 
 

No deputations or petitions were received. 
   
  6. Public Question Time 
                 No questions were asked under this item. 
           

7.  Community Response to Covid-19 
The Panel received a report setting out details of the work that has taken place 
working alongside the voluntary and community sector (VCS) in response to the 
pandemic. The report considered some of the outcomes, learning and challenges 
arising from the last six months, particularly with regards to the VCS going forward 
and assisting in system changes. 
 
The report highlighted the following areas in detail: 
 

 The community response to Covid-19; 

 Capacity of voluntary organisations within the community; 

 How such capacity and sustainability or viability has been impacted by Covid-19; 

 The ways in which the experiences of the last six months have begun to 
influence what happens next. 

 
Colleagues from Third Sector Leaders and the anchor organisations were in 
attendance to input directly into the discussion and provide their unique 
perspectives. 
 
In response to the Covid-19 pandemic a co-ordinated community emergency 
response (CER) for the Kirklees District was established on 19 March 2020.  This 
rapid response saw the mobilisation of partners and services from across the 
council, councillors, the wider system, voluntary and community groups and 
individual volunteers. The CER system was primarily about ensuring that citizens of 
Kirklees were kept safe and well and protected from Covid-19. National government 
guidelines were being issued daily and as the country went into lockdown the CER 
focused on protecting the most vulnerable with basic essentials to keep people safe 
and protect life, such as food, medicines, and other essential items. 
 
With regard to statistical data it was reported that a total number of 3,725 requests 
for help have been received into the council between 25 March and 23 September 
2020. Of these, 30% were from people aged 70 years or over. The highest number 
of requests came from people in the Newsome ward (277), followed by Cleckheaton 
(266). The ward with the highest rate of requests was Cleckheaton (15.4 requests 
per 1,000). The most common type of support requested by people aged 70+ years 
was shopping (who can afford to pay for essential items) and for people aged 18-49 
years it was shopping (who cannot afford to pay for essential items).  
 
In order to meet the challenges at a ward level, it was reported that a decision was 
taken to increase ward member budgets from £20k to £50k per ward. Flexible and 
adapted guidelines were put in place for existing grant programmes to meet the 
Covid-19 response and uplifted funding for foodbanks to cover their surplus spend.   
 
 
 

Page 4



 

3 
 

With regard to the issue of food and welfare it was highlighted that provision has 
been a critical aspect of the community response with existing and new food banks 
supporting thousands of individuals. It was reported that approximately sixty food 
banks are now operating across Kirklees with the three main foodbanks seeing an 
increased take up of a third from the same period last year.  
 
Paul Bridges, CEO of Huddersfield Mission, Andy Petrie, CEO of Local Services 2 
You, and Val Johnson, representing Third Sector Leaders were invited to give their 
perspective in respect of the community response to Covid. All commented on the 
positive approach to partnership working that had provided a platform to further 
build on relationships and developing cultures. Funding, capacity and sustainability 
remain key issues for the sector going forward. 
 
Questions and comments were invited from Panel Members and the following 
issues were raised: 
 

 In response to a question concerning Community Buildings, Councillor 
Walker acknowledged the need for the Council to retain a supportive role as 
they are vital assets. Councillor Taylor suggested the need for business plans 
around community asset transfers to be revisited in light of the effects of the 
pandemic. 

 With regard to track and trace  support payments, Jill Greenfield, Service 
Director Customer and Communities, undertook to take back the issue of 
communications and sharing information with Elected Members 

 Members raised the opportunities available for the Council to identify new 
volunteers and potentially keep a register of active citizens. 

 With regard to inequalities, the Panel noted the work with community 
organisations and acknowledged that ethnicity was not the only factor 
contributing to inequality with regard to the pandemic.  

 The Chair commented on the challenges faced by community organisations 
in relation to capacity, income generation and community buildings and 
suggested that future scrutiny be undertaken in respect of moving forward 
with the community anchor model to ensure the medium and long term 
stability of community organisations. 

 
RESOLVED – 
 
The Panel noted the positive ongoing work undertaken by the Council and 
community organisation in response to the Covid 19 pandemic. 

   
 8          Draft Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD’s) and Bio Diversity Net Gain 

Technical Advice Note 
 
The Panel received draft supplementary planning documents relating to  
 House Extensions and Alterations and Housebuilder Design, along with a technical 
advice note in relation to Bio Diversity net gain. 
 
 

Page 5



 

4 
 

The draft House Extensions and Alteration Guide SPD will support the 
implementation of the policies in the Local Plan, primarily policy LP24 Design, and 
provide further guidance on key considerations for planning applications for the 
extension and alteration of existing homes in Kirklees. Supplementary Planning 
Documents (SPDs) are produced to add clarity in relation to the application of 
planning policies set out in the Local Plan. The draft SPD provides clear guidance 
about how the council will implement Local Plan policy LP24 (Design) and 
determine what will normally be expected in terms of high quality, well-designed 
extensions and alterations to houses in Kirklees. It will provide important certainty 
for elected members, officers and external parties such as the local community and 
developers.  
 
The draft Housebuilders Design Guide SPD will provide further guidance on key 
considerations for planning applications for the design and layout of housing 
developments in Kirklees. 
 
A presentation was given setting out the general scope and content of the 
documents. The adopted Local Plan policy LP24 (Design) which provides the policy 
basis for the SPD’s was appended to the report. 
 
A report was submitted providing detailed advice on how Biodiversity Net Gain 
should be achieved by development within Kirklees in accordance with Local Plan 
policy LP30 (Biodiversity and Geodiversity). It was explained that a technical advice 
note will provide important certainty for elected members, officers and external 
parties such as the local community and developers.  
 
Following public consultation, approval for the Technical Guidance Note will be 
sought from Cabinet. Subject to approval, the Technical Guidance Note will be given 
weight as a material consideration in the planning applications process but will carry 
less weight than a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). At a later date, once 
the Environment Bill is passed, the intention will be to progress this to become an 
SPD including any changes required through the Environment Act. At the relevant 
time it will therefore be subject to the formal process for a Supplementary Planning 
Document. The adopted Local Plan policy LP30 (Biodiversity and Geodiversity) 
which provides the policy basis for this guidance note was appended to the report. 
 
Questions and comments were invited from Panel Members and the following 
issues were raised: 
 

 With regard to the draft SPD’s, the Panel welcomed the documents as a 
means of providing clarity on the planning policies of the Council to residents 
and applicants. 

 In response to a question concerning sloped sites and winter maintenance, it 
was explained that the Highways Design Guide deals with the issue of 
gradients. 

 Members raised the importance of noise insulation being built into architect’s 
designs. 

 
 
 

Page 6



 

5 
 

 In relation to the consultation period, it was suggested that residents who had 
recently purchased properties be targeted to gain their experience and views. 
Furthermore it was suggested that the Place Standard tool be used to pro-
actively promote the consultation and reach a wide range of residents across 
local communities. 

 The role of Councillors, with their local knowledge, was recognised as an 
important element with regard to Bio diversity offsetting 

 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the comments and views of the Panel, as set out above, be considered when 
finalising the draft SPD’s, in advance of the public consultation planned for mid- 
October 2020. 
 

9.              Work Programme 
 
The Panel’s Work Programme for 2020/21 and forthcoming items/activities was 
submitted.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the work programme be noted. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 
 
Name of meeting:  Economy and Neighborhoods Scrutiny 
Date:     8th December 2020   
Title of report:   Active Travel – Update on current/planned initiatives/funding streams 
 
Purpose of report:  
 

 Present the current influences on Kirklees Council’s vision for an Active Travel Strategy 

 Present some next steps to developing an Active Travel Strategy. 
 
 

Key Decision - Is it likely to result in spending 
or saving £250k or more, or to have a significant 
effect on two or more electoral wards?   

No 
 
 

Key Decision - Is it in the Council’s Forward 
Plan (key decisions and private reports)? 
 

N/A 
 

The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by 
Scrutiny? 
 

N/A 
 

Date signed off by Strategic Director & name 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service Director for 
Finance? 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service Director for 
Legal Governance and Commissioning? 
 

David Shepherd  
SD for Growth and Regeneration 
 
27/11/20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
N/A 

Cabinet member portfolio Give name of Portfolio Holder/s 
 
Cllr Peter McBride 
Cllr Naheed Mather 
Cllr Paul Davies 
 

 
Electoral wards affected: All 
 
Ward councillors consulted:   
 
Public or private: Public 
 
Has GDPR been considered? Yes. There are no GDPR concerns.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 7

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139


 

 
 

1. Summary 
 

1.1 Increasing the levels of and better enabling walking and cycling has the potential to influence all 
the shared outcomes for Kirklees. Active Travel is known to have significant positive impact on 
physical and mental health, air quality and environmental health, community cohesion and road 
safety. There are also strong benefits to major developments and ‘place making’ projects across 
Kirklees such as the Huddersfield and Dewsbury Blueprints and major housing/employment 
developments. Walking and Cycling offer economic benefits too, both as a low-cost choice of 
transport for individuals, and in income generation on a local and regional economic scale.  

 

 
 

1.2 This report builds on similar previous ones by providing an update of steps taken within Kirklees 
Council to work towards a more refined approach to Active Travel, within the context of the 
rapidly changing walking and cycling landscape in the UK.  

 
1.3 The global Covid-19 pandemic has created an immediate need for action around the provision of 

additional space for walking and cycling and as we look towards the end of the pandemic there is 
the opportunity to think differently about how we do things to achieve a goal of improving the 
health and economic wellbeing of Kirklees residents.  

 
2. Information required to take a decision 

The following sections detail the policies, scheme, considerations, and internal teams involved in 
the pursuance and provision of Active Travel 

 
2.1  Kirklees Walking and Cycling Strategic Framework 

 
Public Health, in conjunction with walking and cycling partners and wider stakeholders, agreed 
some key objectives and outcomes set out in the Kirklees Walking and Cycling Strategic 
Framework. The vison of the Framework is that: 
 
“Kirklees is recognised as a great place to cycle and walk, inspiring more people to cycle 
and walk more often as a mode for transport, work and leisure or for sport.” 
 
The Framework contains 5 outcomes: 

 
1. Individuals and communities will be supported and encouraged to cycle and walk 

more 
2. Appropriate places and environments for people to walk and cycle 
3. People will be supported to gain skills and confidence to walk and 

cycle 
Page 10

https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/food-exercise-and-sport/pdf/walking_and_cycling_framework.pdf
https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/food-exercise-and-sport/pdf/walking_and_cycling_framework.pdf


 

 
 

4. People will have opportunities to walk and cycle 
5. People will have the knowledge and awareness of cycling and the 

benefits they can bring 
 

2.2  Previous Cycle Strategy 
 

2.2.1 The Council has had a general cycling strategy for approximately 20 years. A core network of 
proposed routes was established in 2000 and currently continues to inform the Council’s overall 
decision making for cycle route investment. This network mainly focuses on segregated off-
highway (Greenway) facilities.  

 
2.3  Form Project Prioritisation Approach 

 
2.3.1 In 2010, the routes were re-evaluated and prioritised in line with a focus on targeting known areas 

of poor health in Kirklees and on locations that topographically suited cycling best. Availability of 
land or funds to build this planned network has often been difficult to secure. Historically, it has 
not therefore been possible to follow the prioritised build programme.  

 
2.3.2 With resources limited, the Council has adopted a flexible approach which uses planning gain 

and funding opportunities to maximise route construction in the district. This flexible approach has 
achieved a lot of key cycling links being constructed with some routes appearing temporarily 
incomplete until adjacent phases are built; however, where sections of routes are built, their 
ability to stand alone is a key consideration.  

 
2.4  Current Major Projects, Serve Area Activity Provision and Additional work 

 
2.4.1 The Major Project Team programmes and projects that are underway, and that incorporate 

walking and cycling provision, are numerous (see Appendix 1 for details). 
 

2.4.2 In addition, the council has several service areas or teams where cycling as an activity is 
promoted: 

 

 Development of a school transport strategy 

 Road safety team 

 Place Partnership Profiles– active travel  

 Behaviour Change Work 

 E-bike and E-scooter- council fleet of 4 e-bikes and national e-scooter trial (alongside EV 
and charging points) 

 
2.4.3 Finally there are several additional projects in various stages of investigation or development. 

These have arisen because of planning applications being progressed and funding being 
secured, from work carried out by partners, e.g. Sustrans or from work the Council is involved in 
to improve Public Rights of Way or urban paths. Selected examples include: 

 

 Meltham Greenway 

 Calder Valley Greenway- Mirfield extension  

 Dalton to Deighton Greenway-Phase 1 

 Spen Valley College - Links to Spen Valley Greenway 

 Brookroyd Gardens - links to existing cycle route 

 Wilton Park Cycle Route 

 Spen Valley Greenway - East Extension 

 Meltham Greenway - Phase 2 

 Town Investment Plan (Dewsbury Town Plan 2021)  
 

2.4.4 The above list is not exhaustive. It is included to demonstrate that the Council is not just involved 
in cycle route provision, but works across a number initiatives, not just as an implementer, but 
also as a facilitator for the community and a reactor to concerns, issues and opportunities raised. 

 
Page 11



 

 
 

2.5 Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans “LCWIP” (2017-2040) 
 

2.5.1 LCWIPs are being developed for the region, to help the Combined Authority and its partner 
councils prioritise future investment in walking and cycling infrastructure in West Yorkshire, 
enabling more people to walk and cycle for everyday journeys. 

 
2.5.2 LCWIPs will help inform future investment in provision for cycling and walking, and form part of 

a future connectivity pipeline across all modes of transport serving the Leeds City Region, as well 
as potentially helping to influence local planning processes. Future investment in walking and 
cycling, informed by these LCWIPs, will help to deliver the policies and targets of the West 
Yorkshire Transport Strategy 2040 - in particular: 

 

 Its policies to provide strategic and local networks of high-quality walking and cycling 
routes, including on and off-road infrastructure to provide safer and better journeys for 
cyclists building on recent delivery 

 its targets to increase the number of trips made on foot by 10% and by bike by 300%, by 
2027  

 
2.5.3 The Transport Strategy recognises that walking and cycling are ideal ways of making shorter 

journeys and offer significant potential to reduce carbon. For example, the Leeds City Region 
Energy Strategy notes that the current CityConnect scheme could save approximately 1 ktCO2 
per year, given the current number of cyclists, average cycling distances and vehicle emission 
data. 

  
2.5.4 Future investment and delivery will be guided by the LCWIPS to support more walking and 

cycling will build on the Combined Authority and its partner councils’ delivery to date of 
infrastructure provision and supporting behaviour change, through the CityConnect programme 
and wider transport investment programmes in the region. 

 
2.5.5 West Yorkshire Combined Authority Transport Committee endorsed a phased approach to 

development of LCWIPs in January 2019, and progress on development of LCWIPs for the 
region was reported to Transport Committee in July 2019, including details of planned 
stakeholder engagement on work carried out in the first phase. This engagement has now 
concluded and the draft phase one LCWIPs have been updated. The Kirklees LCWIP’s for the 
A629 Corridor and Dewsbury can be found under the following link: 

 
 https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/improving-transport/walking-and-cycling-strategy/ 
 

2.5.6 Within LCWIP and through support from our partners at WYCA, and with the help of Sustrans, a 
“West Yorkshire Future Strategic Cycle Network” mapping exercise is already well under way. 
Appendix 2 shows an indicative map, though new iteration is imminent as well as information 
about how and where this will appear. 

 
2.6 Integration of Active Travel into Design 
  
2.6.1 The Council seeks to deliver transport improvements with the following set of general 

principles 
 

 Ensure that new infrastructure is resilient and safe to use, especially for non-car users. 

 Improve quality of life and the local Environment. 

 Encourage active travel and promote good health. 
 

 Promote the economy and assist local growth by development of a travel infrastructure and 
environment that ensures people and goods can move safely from place to place. 

 Accessibility for all – Improve accessibility, efficiency, and attractiveness of transport district 
wide. 

 
 
 Page 12

https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/improving-transport/walking-and-cycling-strategy/


 

 
 

2.6.2 Design Considerations 
 

 Develop ideas collaboratively and in partnership with communities. 

 Design places that provide enjoyment, comfort, and protection. 

 Ensure access for all and equality of opportunity in public space. 

 Ensure all proposals are developed in a way that is context-specific and evidence-led. 

 Seek to develop schemes that separate people walking and cycling from private motor 
vehicles 

 
2.6.3 Design Principles  
 

 Separation of pedestrians from cyclists and motor traffic through provision of segregated off-
carriageway infrastructure; if necessary, through reallocation of road space. 

 Separation of pedestrians and cyclists from motor traffic through the provision of shared-use 
off-carriageway infrastructure. 

 Improve on-road conditions to encourage an increase in cycle use within existing highway. 
 

2.7 Review of Existing Infrastructure 
 

2.7.1 Over the years Kirklees has introduced a significant amount of cycling and walking infrastructure. 
Some of this is built to older standards and may no longer meet current aspirations. Examples 
would be advisory cycle lanes; shared footways; and staggered crossings. In order to build a 
successful cycle and walking network it will be necessary to ensure that all of the existing 
facilities are ‘fit for purpose’ and meet today’s more demanding standards particularly the recent 
Government guidance note LTN 1/20 (see below) 

 
2.8 Local Transport Note (LTN)  1/20 -  Cycle Infrastructure Design Guidance (27 July 2020) 

 
2.8.1 Local Transport Note (LTN) 1/20 provides guidance and good practice for the design of cycle 

infrastructure and was released in support of the Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy. Local 
Authorities received a letter from the Minister of State for Transport outlining the Government’s 
commitment to ensuring that LTN1/20 is implemented and its link to funding. Given the possible 
financial implications of schemes not being developed/delivered in accordance with the new 
guidance it is important that Kirklees considers very carefully the design guidance contained 
within this document at an appropriate point in the cycle of scheme design and appraisal.  

 
2.9 Transport Strategy and Policy Team  

 
2.9.1 The Major Projects team has recently (June 2020) created a new substantive team with the 

specific remit of Transport Strategy and Policy. The purpose of this team is to move from a 
reactive approach (traditionally in response to funding opportunities that arise), to a more 
strategic long-term approach. Additionally, the team will pull together the various council 
disciplines to form a more coherent approach to walking and cycling strategy across the council 
and with partners. 

 
2.10  Multi Discipline Approach at Kirklees 
 
2.10.1 In parallel to significant efforts by the Major Projects team in creating new cycling and walking 

infrastructure, there has been substantial recent consideration given to active travel by other 
services, including Public Health, Road Safety, Schools Transport, and Democracy Service 
colleagues. It is important to consider walking and cycling (WAC) within a ‘whole system’ across 
the council and its partners.  To support behaviour change and enable a modal shift, there needs 
to be a combined approach across the council, which includes but is not exclusive to: 

 

 Public Health 

 Sport and Physical Activity (including health referral pathways) 

 Major Projects 

 Environmental Health 

Page 13



 

 
 

 Highways and road safety 

 Learning and early support 

 Greenspaces  

 Public Rights of Way 

 The Democracy Service 
 

2.11  Covid-19 
 

2.11.1 In response Covid-19, through the Department for Transport Emergency Active Travel Fund 
(Tranche 2), funding was made available specifically for the provision of ‘on-highway’ schemes. 
Areas earmarked for improvements include the A62 Leeds Road in Huddersfield, improved 
access to the Spen Valley Greenway in and around Cleckheaton, and improved connections to 
Dewsbury Railway Station. In addition, the council is looking into the possibility of creating an 
active travel neighbourhood in an area of Huddersfield to help improve links to the wider walking 
and cycling network in the town. 

 
3. Implications for the Council 
 
3.1 Working with People 
 

3.1.1 Consultation and engagement mechanisms have been in place for some time and in recent years 
have been expanded upon. For transport schemes in particular the consultation has traditionally 
been focussed on gathering feedback around scheme designs for pre-determined routes, 
established by the above-mentioned internal prioritisation and careful selection mechanisms.  

 
3.1.2 A cultural shift generally across the authority has been adopted, to consider public opinion at an 

earlier stage in any proposed work, and to let communities lead in determining which provision 
they consider to be a priority at a very localised level. This has been visible in the Place Standards 
tool for example. The tool has gathered significant information relevant to very specific wards 
around key topics- of which Public Transport, Moving Around, Traffic and Parking, Streets and 
Spaces, and Feeling Safe are all determinants. In addition, Influence and Sense of Control is also 
a factor. 

 
3.2 Working with Partners 

 
3.2.1 The ‘Kirklees Walking and Cycling Strategic Framework 2018-2030’1 sets out a clear plan to consulting 

and engaging with audiences around cycling and walking schemes as set out in the document and 
illustrated in the diagram below: 

                                            
1 https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/food-exercise-and-sport/pdf/walking_and_cycling_framework.pdf  

 Page 14

https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/food-exercise-and-sport/pdf/walking_and_cycling_framework.pdf


 

 
 

 
 

 
The Cycling Consultation Group will recommence from December 2020 and the Walking 
Consultation Group soon after.  
 

3.2.2 The Cycling and Walking Delivery Group has from the perspective of Kirklees Council been 
amalgamated into the City Connect Advisory Group, which is comprised largely of the same 
members and has focussed on consulting on the projects that have arisen through immediate need 
or funding availability. However, there is still a need for a Kirklees Delivery Group, and this will be 
addressed in 2021 with a view to restarting this group as well.  
 

3.2.3 It is clear there are far greater number of stakeholders than ever before with whom to engage and 
consult in the area of Active Travel. The Transport Strategy & Policy Team have given additional; 
consideration as to partnership working and the development thereof and are underway with 
expanding upon existing relationships and networks, with active travel forming part of an holistic 
approach to more general transport strategy. This proposed appraoch in suggest Appendix 3.   

 
3.3 WYCA Your Voice.  
 

Through this WYCA engagement portal, we have consulted over a number of schemes since 2018 
with the result of almost 30,000 responses, with some consultations still open. 

 
  

Page 15



 

 
 

 
 
3.4 WYCA Safe streets for walking and cycling - interactive map 
 
3.4.1 An interactive map designed to help us understand which areas could be improved to help the public 

travel more easily by bike on foot, and to provide more space to travel safely and socially distant. This 
has so far gathered over 700 comments which require reviewing and responding to. 
https://www.yourvoice.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/safestreets. 

 
3.5 Sustrans Activation Projects 

 
3.5.1 Sustrans has drawn up plans for 50 “activation projects” across the UK to be completed by 2023. 

These have been chosen from a longlist of 150 based on a simple criteria: does the project 
improve a section that has high usage; does it improve safety; does it support the delivery of a 
traffic-free network; is there landowner support; and is there funding available. 

 
3.5.2 One of these projects is in Mirfield where Sustrans has recently consulted on a project to change a 

section of route from a busy on-road route to a traffic-free path or a quieter road. This will give local 
people and visitors a safer and more enjoyable experience of using the Calder Valley Greenway in 
this part of Kirklees and fill in a missing link along this section 

 
3.5.3 Kirklees Council Officers have recently met with Sustrans to discuss their vision for a network and 

how that might fit into the emerging Active Travel strategy to continue to expand the Greenway 
Network of traffic-free paths for everyone to connecting cities, towns and countryside for all users 
for commuting and recreational purposes. 

 
3.6 Place Based Working  

 
3.6.1 Whilst there are interventions which can take place at a universal level across Kirklees, a large 

majority of work in relation to walking and cycling happens at a local place level.  This is the case 
across all council directorates – including public health, environmental health, and major projects.  It is 
vital to recognise the importance of place within this work and to use intelligence from the Place 
Standard tool.    Different places have a range of differing assets, environmental factors, topographies, 
and infrastructures which influence walking and cycling. 

 
3.7 Streets for people 
 
3.7.1 The Kirklees Streets for People project is one of five demonstration projects being developed across 

West Yorkshire, to deliver exemplar projects that showcase what can be achieved by communities 
and delivery agencies working together to improve places and people’s well-being. The Streets for 
People framework has been developed by building on the “Healthy Streets” framework developed in 
London. 

 
3.7.2 The type of scheme Kirklees seeks to deliver with this funding will be based on 13 key objectives 

(below) and could include public realm works to improve accessibility, measures to support walking 
and cycling and improved greenery to make streets a more pleasant place to spend time. 

 
3.7.3 A. Schemes should aim to create an environment where: 

1) Motor traffic doesn’t dominate the streetscape or where separate, protected provision for 
cycling and pedestrian movement is made 

2) Traffic noise resulting from high volumes of traffic and pollution are minimised 
3) Unnecessary private car use is discouraged 
4) Pedestrians can cross the road comfortably and conveniently 
5) Pedestrians can walk in comfort with clear footways where sharing with cycles is minimised 

and the footway surface is smooth and even 
6) People of all ages and abilities can cycle comfortably and conveniently 
7) People from all walks of life feel safe and relaxed 
8) Vegetation and planting provide shade, shelter, and improved social space as well as 

mitigating against pollution and carbon emissions 
Page 16



 

 
 

9) Natural flood management and drainage solutions that reduce flood risk and surface water 
run-off is developed 

10) There are places to rest and take shelter at regular points 
11) Bus passenger journey times are reduced, or not worsened 
12) Bus stops are accessible to all 
13) Access to and interchange with public transport for all modes is available and convenient 

 
3.8 Climate Change and Air Quality 
 

3.8.1 Increasing cycling and walking as a mode of transportation is part of the Council’s decarbonisation 
and air quality plans. Internal combustion engine (ICE) transportation is the largest sectoral emitter of 
carbon, which causes global warming, and pollutants which cause localised air quality problems. 
Increasing the modal shift from ICE to active travel is one of the critical paths for reducing emissions 
from our transportation sector. It is recognised that it is not possible to convert all personal and 
business transportation to active travel, however, modal shift of the appropriate journeys will have 
positive benefits for the latent alternative transport types, for example, reduction of numbers of 
vehicles on the road overall will allow traffic to move more freely in the network, free flowing traffic, 
even if powered by ICE will be more efficient and therefore less emissions.  

 
3.8.2 It is recognised that active travel alone cannot solve the Climate Emergency or our Air Quality 

problems.  Active travel must be part of an integrated transportation system, where the other aspects 
of the system, such as public transport, and personal/business transport have their emissions reduced 
or eliminated – depending on sector or use case. 

 
3.8.3 There are a number of concerns from a number of stakeholders regarding emissions around school 

premises, especially during the pick-up/drop-off period. The Council has several plans in place to 
investigate the air pollution around schools and take a systems wide approach to deal with any 
problems identified and increase active travel to school. Kirklees Councils Air Quality Action Plan and 
draft Sustainable Schools Policy, as well as Council Motions regarding the issue all relate. An 
allocation in the draft 2020/21 budget has been made and officers are currently considering the most 
effective interventions which could be used within this budget. As it is a new budget, these plans are in 
an early stage.   

 
3.9    Improving outcomes for children 

 
 School Travel Strategy  

 
3.9.1 The new Transport Strategy team along with partners within the Council to integrate a school travel 

strategy into the wider corporate aims and more generally a revised Transport Strategy.  
 

3.9.2 The ability of proposed greenway schemes to service schools is already part of the scoring 
mechanism for scheme selection, as set out in “Greenway Investment Priorities” matrix, March 
2010. The same matrix was discussed at Scrutiny on 4th January 2016 (shown in Appendix 4). 

 
Community Hubs 

 
3.9.3 Taking a place-based approach, community hubs have been invited to share their ideas for 

developing and delivering walking and cycling activities. Up to £5k is available for each of the 9 
Community Hubs across the district.  To date, 4 Community Hubs have come forward with their 
proposals which align to one or more of the walking and cycling outcomes as well as the wider 
place-based priorities, for example social isolation, physical activity, childhood obesity, mental 
health, volunteering etc.  

 
Mode Shift STARS 
 

3.9.4 There are 31 schools in Kirklees who have registered to use the Mode Shift STARS Travel 
Planning system. The road Safety Team are working with schools to increase this number. The 
scheme offers travel survey collection, support to schools in increasing active travel, and the offer 
to be part of an accreditation system as schools progress their mode shift agenda.  

Page 17



 

 
 

 
3.9.5 Work has started to collect baseline pupil travel data from Schools and so far, 58 schools have 

responded. This is a mix of Primary and High Schools. The travel data survey is a hands-up survey 
of each class in each school – presenting a snapshot of travel. 47.2% of pupils are travelling to 
school by private car. 41.3% of pupils are travelling using green modes of travel (walking, cycling, 
scooting, walking bus). The remaining pupils travel by either school bus or public transport 
(11.5%).   
 
Road Safety 
 

3.9.6 Children and young people are being supported to gain the skills they need to walk and cycle safely. 
In the 2019 academic year 5488 children in 98 Primary Schools were supported to gain safe 
pedestrian skills through the following programmes: Streetfeet (for Year 1 and 2), Practical Pedestrian 
Training (Year 3), Roadwise Practical Pedestrian Training (Year 5). A Theatre in Education production 
was delivered to 4354 Year 7 pupils in 24 High Schools.  
 

3.9.7 In addition to this, 1081 Year 5 pupils from some of the most deprived areas in Kirklees took part in 
the Safety Rangers Initiative which is commissioned by the Yorkshire Children’s Centre and delivered 
in partnership with Road Safety, The Police and The Fire Service.  
 

3.9.8 A new resource from Living Streets has also been trialled called ‘Next Steps to High School’ with 150 

pupils who made up the new Year 7 intake in September 2020. Next Steps encourages walking 
and cycling as main methods of travel to secondary school.  

 
Bikeability 
 

3.6.9 Bikeability in Kirklees is co-ordinated by the School Games Host Organisers and is delivered by 
external partners. It is estimated that attendance at cycle training (from Balancability ranging up to 
Level 3 in some cases) achieved the following attendance from April 19 to March 20: 

  
- Batley, Birstall, Dewsbury SSP -  1168 
- Spen Valley SSP- 852 

- Newsome SSP - 852 
 
Scooter Training 
 

3.9.10 Public Health published an invitation to quote for the scooter activities on Yortender2 in October 
2020. Scooter training will soon be an additional offer in schools for children and encourage 
another mode of travel to school.  

 
Cycle and Scooter storage across education centres 
 

3.9.11 Currently there is an ad hoc approach to school storage for cycles and scooters, however Kirklees 
Council is supporting a number of offers and working with schools to identify opportunities. This 
has potential for a more holistic overview alongside the cycle and scooter training mentioned.  

 
 Access to a Cycle or Scooter 
 

3.9.12 Often, we know that cycle and scooter training providers will provide cycles and scooters as part of 
their offer and so that no child is excluded from the offers at schools. However, there is a need to 
address the access to equipment for children when such training ends. Currently a large amount of 
this need is serviced by third sector community organisations, who provide second-hand 
equipment, or service privately owned kit in need of repair. There is scope to make access to 
equipment more inclusive where financial or other barriers are present and to address any health 
or economic inequalities that exist for children.  

                                            
2 https://procontract.due-north.com/Advert?advertId=c51f8240-ad17-eb11-8105-
005056b64545&p=1c381835-7581-e611-8114-000c29c9ba21  
 Page 18

https://procontract.due-north.com/Advert?advertId=c51f8240-ad17-eb11-8105-005056b64545&p=1c381835-7581-e611-8114-000c29c9ba21
https://procontract.due-north.com/Advert?advertId=c51f8240-ad17-eb11-8105-005056b64545&p=1c381835-7581-e611-8114-000c29c9ba21


 

 
 

 
3.10  Other (e.g. Legal/Financial or Human Resources)  
 

3.10.1 To deliver the Council’s ambition the development of an Active Travel Strategy requires resources. 
The current Transport Strategy and Policy team is comprised of two Officers. Recruitment of two 
additional has also commenced and it is hoped that this could be augmented soon to assist in the 
writing the strategy and detailing a comprehensive delivery plan with a costed range of schemes, 
policies, and initiatives, supported by achievable delivery dates. 

 
4 Consultees and their opinions 
 
4.1 A draft “West Yorkshire Future Strategic Cycle Network” went to Transport Committee in Jan 2020 

and is under development, with a final version due in the first half of 2021.  
 
4.2 As Kirklees develops a strategic network the opinions of consultees will continue to be sought in 

adherence with the afore mentioned mechanisms.  
 
5 Next steps and timelines 
 
5.1 It is important to note that there is already a lot of good work ongoing within the Council, with 

partners and within the Community and the development an Active Travel strategy is not taking 
place on a blank sheet of paper. It is about joining this good work together, understanding the 
holistic impact on the economy and the health and wellbeing of Kirklees residents and proactively 
facilitating and encouraging change where applicable. 

 
5.2 There are however several potential actions the Transport Strategy and Policy Team would like to 

take forward when developing and Active Travel Strategy: 
 

 The Transport Strategy and Policy Team will seek to coordinate the Council’s active travel 
agenda across all policy and decision making,  

 Work with the community and interest groups around developing an Active Travel 
Strategy, starting with the Kirklees Cycle Forum in December 2020 and ongoing 

 Complete and roll out a new robust Active Travel Strategy, as part of the wider (perhaps 
amended) Transport Strategy (by end of the first half of 2021 

 Progress LCWIP outcomes to the next stage (2021-22) 

 Transport and Planning colleagues to develop an approach to planning applications that 
makes most effective use of developer contributions for all future applications, and 
capitalised on all available opportunities to embed active travel into new developments 

 Ensure mechanisms for measuring success are considered and engagement and 
communication resource is available to inform partners and the public 

 
6 Officer recommendations and reasons 

 
6.1 To continue to support an integrated approach to developing an emerging Active Travel Strategy 

and to note the actions proposed to be taken forward to further develop the Councils Active 
Travel work  

 
 

7 Cabinet Portfolio Holder’s recommendations 
 

Not applicable.  
 

 
8 Contact officer  

 
Tim Lawrence, Transport Strategy and Policy Manager  
 

 
9 Background Papers and History of Decisions Page 19



 

 
 

 

 Feb 2009- Scrutiny Panel for Safer Stronger Communities; Update on the Kirklees 

Greenway development programme 

 Jan 2016- Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee- Cycle Ways/Greeways 

 Feb 2020- Scrutiny Panel Meeting - Economy and Neighbourhoods Extra Meeting; Cross 

council report on walking and cycling 

 
10 Service Director responsible  

 
Angela Blake- Economy and Skills 
 
 
  

Page 20



 

 
 

Appendix 1 

 
Scheme 
 

 
Funding 

 
Status 

 
A62 / A644 Cooper Bridge 

 
CA – WY+TF 

 
Pre OBC 

 
M2D2L 

 
CA – WY+TF 

 
Pre OBC 

 
A62 Smart Corridor 

 
CA – WY+TF 

 
Post FBC 

 
Holmfirth TC 

 
CA – WY+TF 

 
Post OBC 

 
Huddersfield Southern Corridor 

 
CA – WY+TF 

 
Post FBC 

 
Huddersfield Station Gateway 

 
CA – WY+TF 

 
Pre OBC 

 
A629 Corridor phase 4 

 
CA – WY+TF 

 
Post OBC 

 
Cross Church Street 

 
CA – CityConnect 

 
Post OBC 

 
Bradley to Brighouse (B2BG) 

 
CA – CityConnect 

 
Post OBC 

 
Transforming Cities (TC) Fund – Minor 

 
CA – TC 

Huddersfield – In delivery 
Dewsbury -Pre delivery 

 
Transforming Cities (TC) Fund – Major 

 
CA - TC 

 
Pre OBC 

 
Streets for People demonstration project 

 
CA - LTP 

 
In development 

 
Emergency Active Travel (tranche 1&2) 

 
CA - DfT 

 

 
Huddersfield Narrow Canal 

 
CA – CityConnect 

 
In consultation 

Kirklees Calder Valley Greenway Sustrans 
"Regional Activation Project" (NR66 Mirfield) 
On-road link. 

 
CA 

 
In development 

  

Page 21



 

 
 

Appendix 2 
 
West Yorkshire Future Strategic Cycle Network 
 
 

 
[Source: https://westyorkshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14455/Item%206%20-%20Appendix%207%20-
%20draft%20Future%20West%20Yorkshire%20Strategic%20Cycle%20Network.pdf ] 

  

Page 22



 

 
 

Appendix 3 
Consultation Stakeholders 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 23



 

 
 

Appendix 4  

“Greenway Investment Priorities” matrix 2010 

 

P
age 24



 

1 
 

ECONOMY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL  
 

MEMBERS:  Councillors: Harpreet Uppal (Lead Member), Martyn Bolt, Richard Eastwood, Yusra Hussain, Richard Murgatroyd and John Taylor  
 Co-optees: Andrew Bird, Chris Friend, Eilidh Ogden 

 
SUPPORT:  Leigh Webb, Principal Governance & Democratic Engagement Officer 
 

POTENTIAL ISSUES IDENTIFIED FOR INCLUSION IN THE WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21 
 

ISSUE APPROACH AND AREAS OF FOCUS OFFICER/PARTNER COMMENTS 
FULL PANEL DISCUSSION ISSUES – CARRIED FORWARD FROM 2019/20 

1. Inward Investment Strategy 
 

 Inward Investment Strategy 

 which businesses/sectors should be targeted and what do they need 
to be sustainable and grow. 

 alternative sources of finance for environmental issues/ alternative 
energy use. 

Originally scheduled for April 2020 
(cancelled due to Covid 19) 

2. Tackling Poverty 
 

 What organisations can do to design services which integrate and 
consider the impact of poverty in how people access, use and 
experience services; 

 How poverty can be considered as part of decision-making 
processes across the authority;  

 Inclusive Economy work – e.g. good work, local spend and social 
value;  

 How can employers work together to optimise the opportunities 
for investment in good quality pre-Apprenticeships and 
Apprenticeships programmes? How can we transfer good 
practice in health and social care to other sectors of the local 
economy? 

  What Council can do to support their own staff who may be living   
in poverty e.g. poverty proofing in a work-based setting. 

Originally scheduled for April 2020 
(cancelled due to Covid 19) 
 
Considered by Corporate Scrutiny 
Panel (Sept 2020) 

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 10



 

2 
 

3. Active Travel 
 
 
 

To continue to monitor current and planned infrastructure. 
 
 

Originally considered at joint meeting 
on 28 Feb 2020 - Panel resolved to 
keep the issue on the work programme 
and arrange a half day workshop to 
allow for more in depth consideration.  
Cycling and Walking visit (29 March 
cancelled due to Covid 19) To be re-
arranged when possible 
 

4. Digital Strategy 
 
 

 Progress with physical infrastructure but also in respect of the wider 
promotion of the advantages of the Kirklees district.  

 The work being undertaken relating to the development of 
appropriate skills (links in with Skills Strategy) 

 The work being done to ensure that residents within more rural areas 
are supported to be able to access a digital network that is fit for 
purpose and future proofed. 

 

Originally considered March 2020. 
Panel resolved to receive update on 
digital agenda after 12 months. 

5. Air Quality Following introduction of 5 year Action Pan, to monitor and consider the 
following: 

 

 Which measures have proven effective and which provide good 
value for money.  

 Addressing the issue of vehicles with idling engines particularly 
outside schools. 

 How the planning system can be used/will address issues in relation 
to infrastructure to encourage sustainable transport/active travel.  

 Improving infrastructure to encourage travel by public 
transport/cycling and walking.  

 Encouraging/ facilitating better options for travel to school to 
reduce use of private cars. 
 

 

The Panel considered the Air Quality 
Action Plan in Oct 19 as part of its 
development. A number of areas to 
monitor were identified following 
implementation of the Action Plan. 

P
age 26



 

3 
 

6. Planning Related Matters Hot Food Takeaway  
 
 
CIL + Viability Guidance  
 

Deferred from Jan 2020 (likely Apr 
2021) 
 
Considered Jan 2020 – further 
examination prior to adoption by 
Council 

7. Towns and Communities in Kirklees  Assess the objectives/delivery of plans to include the 
aspirations/vision for the towns, public realm and infrastructure. 

 Consideration of the wider context of other town centres/ villages 
across Kirklees to include looking at the key challenges and 
opportunities that could influence this agenda.  

 

July 2019 Report on the Huddersfield 
Blueprint – with a focus on 
engagement and consultation. 
 
Future updates/reports requested as 
plans develop 
 

PROPOSED NEW ISSUE FOCUS OFFICER/PARTNER COMMENTS 

1. COVID-19  
 
 
 
 

To consider the impact of COVID-19 on areas falling within the remit of 
the Economy and Neighbourhoods Panel. Potential areas for 
consideration: 
 

   Waste Collection/Recycling/Fly Tipping 

   Economic Impact including: 
- Business Grants (processing and take up) 
- Measures to support the local economy and aid 

economic recovery 
- Understanding the budget implications of dealing with 

the crisis and the longer-term financial impact. 
- Impact on poverty and tackling inequalities 

 

 Community Response (including capacity of voluntary 
organisations within the community and the strengthening ) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 27



 

4 
 

 Housing Rents (Impact on tenants following recent increase in 
council housing rents ; help provided to tenants who may require 
financial support)  

 Supplementary Planning Documents – Residential Design and 
Householder extensions and alterations 

 Private Rented Housing Sector (Support as a result of Covid) 

 
 
To be scheduled: 
Inward Investment Strategy 
Blueprint Updates 
Private Rented Housing support 
 

P
age 28


	Agenda
	2 Interests
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Active Travel
	10 Work Programme

